### MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE OADBY RESIDENTS' FORUM HELD AT THE TRINITY METHODIST CHURCH, HARBOROUGH ROAD, OADBY, LEICESTER, LE2 4LA ON WEDNESDAY, 13 JUNE 2018 COMMENCING AT 6.30 PM

## PRESENT

Councillor M L Darr (Chair)

### COUNCILLORS

Miss A R Bond D M Carter B Dave D A Gamble J Kaufman Mrs L Kaufman

### **OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE**

Ms V Quintyne N Thomas (Community Engagement Officer) (Assistant Director & Head of Service for Communities and Wellbeing, Leicestershire County Council)

### **OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE**

38 Residents

### 1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

No apologies were received.

### 2. LOCAL POLICING ISSUES

There was no police representative at the meeting.

### 3. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 28 FEBRUARY 2018

The minutes of the meeting were passed as a true record.

### 3a. MATTERS ARISING

No issues were raised from the matters arising sheet attached at point 2a.

### 4. TERMS OF REFERENCE FOR THE RESIDENTS' FORUMS

A hard copy of the Residents' Forums Terms of Reference was circulated for information at this meeting. The Chair confirmed, suggestions for amendment, received by residents were incorporated into the final drafted document. The document was endorsed by the Council.

### 5. OADBY LIBRARY SERVICE

The Assistant Director from the County Council provided a verbal presentation relating to the change in library service for Oadby Library and responded to residents' questions. The Assistant Director noted the £13 million of savings the County Council is required to

Chair's Initials make by 2020 which was the catalyst behind the proposed self- service model with limited staffing for libraries and changes to museums. The County Council Cabinet has endorsed the forthcoming changes:

- Residents were given the opportunity to ask questions.
- Oadby library will continue to be funded by the County Council.
- Work has begun to put a system in place to allow residents' access the library.
- A card with a pin number will allow self-serve access.
- The Library will not be accessible twenty-four hours a day.
- Likely opening Library times will be from 8am till early evening. Opening times have not yet been set.
- The Library will be closed one day a week. It will not be staffed on that day.
- Syston Library was used as the model for the proposed library changes.
- CCTV monitoring will be introduced as well as a phone service. This will allow people to report any issues and promote safety and wellbeing. The CCTV will monitor the public space in the library. The exception to this will be staff workspace. Two Security Officers will monitor the CCTVs. If any Library User, using an unstaffed Library, has an illness and knows they might experience a health issue, it is up to them to know how this should be managed. First Aid trained, Library staff, on duty, would be expected to call Emergency Services as required.
- Groups will still be able to book the Library space for meetings. Library staff will handle bookings.
- Residents will go through an induction process on how to access the library and on how to take out and return books.
- An activated voice recording will play to advertise the Library is closing. If the Library shuts down with anyone left inside, an alarm will be activated and a Security Officer will return to let them out.
- Library usage patterns will be monitored.
- Library staffing times will be displayed and advertised.
- On the question raised as to how Oadby & Wigston Council's Customer Service will be accessed, the Assistant Director stated this would be worked out with the Council and County Council. The Assistant Director made a distinction between County Council and Borough Council decision-making and added, technically there was nothing at this time to say how Customer Service will operate.
- Concern was expressed by residents as to how local people will be able to access Customer Services. It was emphasised that getting to Bell Street from Oadby was difficult.
- The Chair confirmed that the Borough Council was working out how residents would obtain access to Customer Services outside of Library hours.
- The Assistant Director noted that the Library would be closed for the next two weeks to have adaptations to the Library's access, egress and lending services completed.
- Concern was expressed that the Library changes would lead to the "killing off and privatisation" of libraries.
- The County Council has worked with disability groups to address issues of access. The Assistant Director stated that the County Council was looking at maybe providing an online service for use by disabled people. The Assistant Director confirmed that libraries cannot be privatised.

• The County Council did some consultation with residents on this proposal through the Community and Wellbeing Strategy. Residents had the opportunity to contact their local County Councillor. One suggestion received was that Libraries should make the best use of technology.

Clarity was requested as to whether people will still be able to access the small car park behind the Library. Will a parking ticket be required and will people face being charged a  $\pounds 100$  fine for over staying their allotted time.

# Action:

These points will be checked and residents informed at the next residents forum meeting.

• Residents discussed taking a vote at the meeting, requesting a show of hands, to show how many residents disagreed with the incoming changes to the Library services. Some residents asked what was the point of taking a vote noting that the changes were agreed by County Hall and were already being carried out. No vote was taken.

# Action:

The Assistant Director agreed to send the Residents Forum information as to when the consultation decision was made to change how the future Library services will work.

# 6. THE OADBY OLD SWIMMING POOL SITE (BRIEFING UPDATE)

A hard copy of the briefing update concerning this site was circulated for information to residents at the meeting.

# 7. OADBY TRADERS' UPDATE

No representative of Oadby Traders was present at this meeting to provide an update.

# 8. **PRIDE OF THE BOROUGH**

The PoTB (Pride of the Borough) representative, Simon Lucas provided the following update.

- East Midlands in Bloom takes place on Wednesday 11<sup>th</sup> July 2018. The Borough has won the Golden Award for the past seven years
- A request was made to the County Councillors in acknowledging cuts to services on the maintenance of highways and verges, to consider returning services to in-house control. This it was said was happening in other districts.
- Pride of the Borough was asking for improvement in the cutting of verges and green space to improve the look of the Borough.
- The PoTB membership card is £5. Proceeds from purchasing the card supports projects, purchase of equipment, provides discounts on good s and services by local businesses. A thousand people now own a card.
- A plea was made by the PoTB representative for people not to drop litter. This would help to create a gold standard town.

# 9. CHAIR'S UPDATES

A hard copy of the Update, inclusive of the current budget was circulated at the meeting.

**Oadby Residents' Forum** Wednesday, 13 June 2018 Chair's Initials All the updates were either approved or in the process of completion via Council Finance.

# **10. ITEMS RAISED BY RESIDENTS**

## Oadby Stakeholders & Oadby Remembers 1914-1918 Project.

Oadby Stakeholders and Oadby Remembers applied for £397.36p to create an art installation.

A hard copy of a slide presentation and photographs were circulated at the meeting. The art installation will consist of decorated soldier cut-outs, similar to the famous 50 produced by Coalville Town. The cut-outs will represent the scale of the sacrifice made by soldiers from Oadby who perished in World War One.

The cut-outs will be decorated and displayed across the Town. They will then be brought together for Remembrance Sunday 2018. The community and some schools are involved in this project.

It was suggested the cut-outs be placed in buildings, such as local shops. It was suggested the art installation include Commonwealth boards, which reflect the nature of change in the Town's community over the past 100 years.

Eighty-one biographies will be displayed in St Peter's Church, Oadby and 81 cut-outs decorated by members of the community.

One resident proposed the project. Thirty residents voted in its favour. There were no votes against the project.

### **Request for a Grit Bin for the Blackthorn Manor Estate**

£500 was requested for the purchase and installation of a Grit Bin in line with County Council criteria. The Grit Bin service will cover Whitebeam Road and the roads connecting to it. This Includes: Dogwood court, Hawthorn Grove, Eglantine Close, Wych Elm Road and Holly Court.

The County Council will be required to sanction the installation of the Grit Bin. The bin must meet all aspects of the County Council's criteria for placement on the Highway. A site visit will be required to be made by the County Council to confirm whether the suggested site for placing the grit bin is ok. The County Council tops up Grit Bins annually.

The residents supported an in principle decision for funding the grit bin. On a show of hands 27 people voted in favour of the proposal.

### Action:

It was agreed that a funding proposal for the Grit Bin will be presented at the next resident's forum meeting.

# Proposal to Build 300 Homes in Oadby

This was raised as an issue of concern by some residents who felt they had not been adequately consulted. The land for building was identified as owned by the Co-op. Two residents wished to know what consultation the Council had carried out with Oadby residents in the area.

**Oadby Residents' Forum** Wednesday, 13 June 2018 Chair's Initials It was noted that the proposal would have gone through proper planning processes. It had been placed on the Council's website and residents contacted. The resident asking the question stated she worked long hours and was not in the habit of accessing the Council's website.

# Action:

It was agreed to have an update provided on the proposal to build 300 homes in Oadby on the next Residents Forum agenda for discussion.

# **Churchill Close and County Council Proposal to Insert Double Yellow Lines**

A resident raised the point that people were parking on an area outside his home where a sign stated it was access only and the proposal to place double yellow lines on one side would affect his right to access, to park.

The County Councillor J Kaufman explained, there was a proposal about introducing double yellow lines in Churchill Close currently being discussed at County Council. The County Council had consulted residents on the proposal and received responses online.

The issue that helped to form the proposal was the issue of emergency vehicles not being able to access and exit the Close due to double parking. The Borough Council is in discussions re residents having access to some of the car park area currently not available.

### Action:

It was agreed to bring an update on the Churchill Close County Council proposal to the next Residents Forum meeting.

# **Recycling Bins**

Wheeled bins for recyclates will be arriving at the Borough Council, next week.

The Council has established a team to address recycling and waste.

Councillor Carter gave a brief review of the history of processing recyclates before the new change to clear plastic bags was introduced.

A resident noted that if recycled waste went to fortnightly collection he would require a bigger bin. Following a waste and recycling meeting to be held on July 31<sup>st</sup>, the Council will decide how to move forward.

Refuse collection going into wheelie bins is all part of the consultation process

# **Resurfacing of Fludes Lane**

The resurfacing has been placed on the Capital Programme. The Council is negotiating how much money will be spent.

# Police Attendance

Some concern was expressed at the lack of Police attendance at this evening's meeting. The Police has not intimated that they will no longer attend Resident's Forums.

One resident requested the Police are informed about a lady who approached him

**Oadby Residents' Forum** Wednesday, 13 June 2018 expressing her sense of feeling threatened by people standing outside the Wheel Sports Bar. It was said a large number of males caused the lady to feel apprehensive.

Another resident who had not been involved in some of the previous incidents of ant-social behaviour reiterated the same message.

### Action:

Provide an update at the next Residents Forum meeting.

### 11. SUGGESTIONS FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

- Planning and the proposal to build 300 new homes in Oadby.
- Churchill Close and placement of double yellow lines.
- Library car park
- Wheelie Bins and recycling.

## 12. DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING

Wednesday 5 September 2018 at the Barnabas Centre, Hamble Road, Oadby at 6.30 pm.

### THE MEETING CLOSED AT 8.12 PM

Ø

Chair

Wednesday, 05 September 2018

Printed and published by Democratic Services, Oadby and Wigston Borough Council Council Offices, Station Road, Wigston, Leicestershire, LE18 2DR